
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:15 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:15 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Michael W. Hutson, Chair, and Mark Maxwell, Vice Chair 
Donald Edmunds, Philip Sanzica, Robert Schultz, Thomas Strat 

John J. Tagle, Lon M. Ullmann and Mark J. Vleck 

   

June 8, 2010 7:30 P.M. Council Chamber 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES May 25, 2010 Special/Study Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL REQUEST (File Number SU 380) – 

Proposed Unique Auto Sales, South side of Maple, West of Rochester (578 and 580 E. 
Maple), Section 34, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 961) – Proposed Panera Bread Café, 

West side of Coolidge, South of Maple (1325 Coolidge), Section 31, Currently Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 

7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 960) – Proposed VEHMA International 
Improvements, Northwest Corner of Stephenson Hwy and Rankin (1055 Stephenson Hwy), 
Section 35, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on May 25, 2010 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-05-032 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-05-033 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 11, 2010 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Edmunds gave a report on the May 18, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Edmunds addressed the inconsistency in the Zoning Ordinance as relates to fire 
suppression systems in residential districts. 
 
Mr. Savidant said requirements relating to fire suppression systems should not be 
included in the Zoning Ordinance because they are building code and fire code issues, 
and the matter would be addressed with the re-write of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority meeting in May. 
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported the following two items are scheduled to go before City Council on 
June 7, 2010 (Announcement of Public Hearing) and June 21, 2010 (Public Hearings). 
 

 Troy Sports Center Properties (File Number Z 737) – Rezoning Application 

 Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating (File Number SU 379) – Special Use Request 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 

SU 375) – Proposed Pro Car Wash East, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles, 
Section 23, Currently Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the item went before the May 18, 2010 Board of Zoning 
Appeals (BZA) meeting and was granted a variance for the landscaping.   
 
Mr. Branigan gave an overview of the Planning Consultant report.  He addressed 
the building design layout, site circulation and parking.  Mr. Branigan recommended 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

that the Planning Commission approve the proposed project, conditioned on the 
applicant addressing some issues noted in the Planning Consultant report; i.e., 
elevation of the canopy (height and design), access from the adjacent parking lot to 
the north, and site design issues relating to parking, loading and site access and 
circulation.   
 
There was discussion on the following: 

 Validity of parking spaces shown on site plan.   

 Calculation of stacking spaces. 
 
Robert Waldron of 3688 Rochester Road, Troy, was present to represent Martha 
Waldron and the business, Pro Car Wash.  Mr. Waldron addressed speed of a 
carwash operation in determining the number of stacking spaces.  He said the 
property owner to the north is not comfortable with a cross access easement 
agreement.  Lastly, Mr. Waldron stated they are using the existing canopy at the 
new location. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he would not recommend approval of the site plan with the 
access to the north, as noted on the site plan, without a cross access easement 
agreement.  Mr. Branigan said he is not comfortable with the proposed driveway 
because the next owner might not redevelop the site.  He said it is like a pressure 
valve on the circulation to the south, and he would prefer no ingress at that location. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Planning Commission can require a petitioner to have a cross 
access easement, but the petitioner has no control with other property owners.  He 
said it is unfair to put the burden on the petitioner to convince a neighbor to agree to 
a cross access easement.  Mr. Savidant said the Planning Consultant has brought 
up a good point, but it is City policy to get a cross access easement from the 
applicant.  
 
Mr. Waldron said he is in agreement with a cross access easement. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he would not hold up the City standard procedure but noted he 
has serious reservations in going forward with approval of the site plan without a 
cross access easement agreement with both property owners. 
 
There were brief comments on the cross access easement as relates to: 

 Potential liability issues. 

 Location; impedes traffic circulation to some extent. 

 Legal agreement process.  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2010-05-034 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Pro Car Wash East automobile wash/service station/convenience store, 
located on the east side of Rochester, south of Wattles, Section 23, within the H-S 
zoning district, be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. The applicant granting a cross access agreement to the property to the north. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

9. 54 E. SQUARE LAKE ROAD – Potential Café in Historic Structure, South Side of 
Square Lake, East of Livernois, Section 10, Currently Zoned B-1 (Local Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced Connie Kelemen who has an interest in utilizing the historic 
structure at 54 E. Square Lake Road as an old world European style café.  Mr. 
Savidant addressed the site as relates to the following: 
 Chapter 13, Historic Preservation. 
 Zoning Ordinance. 
 Existing and adjacent zoning districts. 
 Master Plan. 
 Outdoor seating. 
 Existing gravel parking lot. 
 Existing landscaping. 
 Historic District Commission review and support. 

 
Connie Kelemen of 1767 Three Lakes, Troy, addressed her vision to locate a 
German café in Troy.  Ms. Kelemen said the site is a perfect location for the café of 
her vision, where she would serve refreshments such as coffee and dessert.  She 
distributed photographs and a sample of the crushed gravel parking lot material.   
 
There was discussion on: 
 Walkability of the location. 
 Gravel parking lot; i.e., snow removal, relation to outdoor seating. 
 Existing landscaping. 

 
The Planning Commission expressed unanimous support of the proposed project. 
 
Mr. Savidant asked Ms. Kelemen to contact him and he would walk her through the 
site plan approval process.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. POTENTIAL REZONING – East side of Rochester, South Side of Shallowdale 
(4398 and 4518 Rochester Road), Section 14, Approximately 4 acres in size, 
presently zoned R-1C (One Family Residential), R-1T (One Family Attached 
Residential) and E-P (Environmental Protection) 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed a potential rezoning of the four-acre parcel as relates to: 
 Zoning classifications of parcel. 
 History of hodgepodge zoning. 
 Zoning of surrounding areas. 
 Master Plan. 
 Proposed use as credit union. 
 Building on two acres only; balance of property as open space, buffer for 

residential. 
 
Timothy Affolder of Kingsley Commercial Real Estate, 2100 Executive Hills, Auburn 
Hills, was present to represent the developer. 
 
Tom Alter, President of Genisys Credit Union of 363 W. Big Beaver, was also 
present.  
 
Mr. Affolder said Genisys Credit Union intends to build a 5,000 square foot building 
with one drive-up ATM and two drive-up teller lanes.  He indicated the portion zoned 
E-P would remain as E-P, with some proposed improvements.  Mr. Affolder said 
any landscaping that might have to be removed would be replaced.  Mr. Affolder 
said the two existing Genisys locations in Troy would be combined to this one 
location.  He distributed photographs of existing Genisys Credit Unions. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the relationship of the property to residential, which he 
noted could be challenging in the rezoning process.  He discussed the potential 
development of a showplace credit union with a low impact design and green 
features.  Mr. Savidant commented that the petitioner is cognizant of the City’s 
procedure for conditional rezonings. 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly addressed the site with respect to the Master Plan. 
 
Discussion followed on 
 Pedestrian access. 
 Neighborly environment. 
 Walkability. 
 Sustainability. 
 Stormwater management. 
 Low impact development techniques. 
 Potential liability issues relating to “shared” areas. 
 Visibility of parked cars. 

 
The consensus of the Planning Commission was favorable.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 6 - 
 

11. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 
with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan presented an overview of Chapter 11 - Environmental Standards: 
Natural Features Preservation and Renewable Energy Facilities.  He addressed: 
 

 Regulatory Flexibility for Natural Features Preservation.  
 Stormwater Management. 
 Wind Energy Conversion Systems. 
 Solar Structures. 

 
Mr. Branigan noted comments by Planning Commission members on vegetative 
water features, wetlands regulations and preservation, stormwater management 
and green development incentives. 
 
It was the consensus of the Planning Commission to be more restrictive on Wind 
Energy Conversation Systems in residential areas. 
 
Mr. Branigan noted there are no proposed revisions to the Solar Structure section.   
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

13. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Savidant said he would provide updated materials on the Troy/Birmingham 
Transit Center soon. 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly addressed current construction going on in the City. 
 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 7 - 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\05-25-10 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



  PC 2010.06.08 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

DATE: June 3, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE APPROVAL REQUEST (File Number 

SU 380) – Proposed Unique Auto Sales, South side of Maple, West of 
Rochester (578 and 589 E. Maple), Section 34, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light 
Industrial) 

 
 
The applicant Unique Auto Sales submitted the above referenced Special Use Approval 
application.  They propose used auto sales and auctions on the subject property, which is 
currently used for an automotive repair and towing business.  The property is zoned M-1. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
project. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the June 8, 2010 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared by CWA. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 380 
 

 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 380 Unique Auto Sales  Sec 34\SU-380 Unique Auto Sales 06 08 10.docx 

 



SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL REQUEST (File Number SU 

380) – Proposed Unique Auto Sales, South side of Maple, West of Rochester 
(578 and 580 E. Maple), Section 34, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 

 
Proposed Resolution # PC-2010-06- 

Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval, as requested for the proposed used car 
sale operation, located on the south side of Maple, west of Rochester, in Section 
34, within the M-1 zoning district, be (granted, subject to the following 
conditions): 
 
1. No used automobile display within the required front yard. 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / DENIED 
 
 



UNIQUE AUTO SALES, 578 & 580 E. Maple

5/12/2010

Legend

1: 1,761

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1470294 294Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



UNIQUE AUTO SALES, 578 & 580 E. Maple

5/12/2010

Legend

1: 3,522

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2940587 587Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 

Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Brent Savidant 

 

FROM: Zachary Branigan 

DATE: June 4, 2010 

 

RE: Unique Auto Sales Special Use Request 

 

We are in receipt of an application to add a used auto sales operation to an existing towing and 

auto repair facility in an M-1 District on the south side of East Maple Road. Used auto sales are 

permitted in the M-1 District subject to special use approval. The existing towing and repair 

operation, located at 578 East Maple Road, is housing in an two-tenant building on a lot of 

approximately 2.95 acres.  The applicant’s current operation occupies both tenant spaces. 

Required parking for the existing operation is provided in the front yard, which is a legally 

existing nonconformity on this site. 

 

The applicant has stated in the application for this project that the intent is to add both an auction 

function and a used auto sales function.  However, after consultation with the applicant, they 

have decided against pursuing the auction approval at this time.  This application, therefore, is 

exclusively to permit conventional used auto sales.   

 

In the M-1 District, used auto sales are permitted as a special use by Section 28.30.14 subject to 

the following: 

 

1. The outdoor display of banners, flags, balloons or similar promotional items is not 

permitted. 

2. The sales office shall be located on-site within a permanent building. 

3. The sale of commercial vehicles shall be limited to pick-up trucks and passenger/cargo-

style vans. 

4. All vehicles sold shall be in operable condition. 

5. The exterior display of vehicles or exterior automobile storage shall not be permitted 

within the required front yard. 

6. To prevent a concentration of similar uses, a used automobile sales facility shall not be 

located within 1,500 feet of another used automobile sales facility, automobile auction or 

commercial vehicle sales facility. Distance shall be measured from lot line to lot line 

using a straight line. This shall not preclude more than one such use being located on the 

same site as part of a single facility. 



Unique Auto Sales Special Land Use 

June 4, 2010 

 2 

The only outstanding condition unmet by the application is the presence of autos for sale in the 

front yard.  The front yard cannot be used for vehicle displays, and further, required parking for 

the existing uses cannot be occupied by the autos for sale.  Therefore, the applicant must relocate 

the proposed autos for sale to the rear yard and comply with the other requirements noted above. 

 

Parking for used auto sales is determined by the indoor square footage of sales area. 

No additional parking will be required by this addition, given that no showroom area is being 

provided and the existing use is served by parking already.   

 

This proposal has been reviewed by the various agencies within the City with few comments 

received.  Given that no modifications to the facility or site are proposed, there were no 

objections from any City departments, other than minor comments on maneuvering and the 

presence of the cars for sale in the front yard, which is prohibited, as noted above. 

 

For any special land use, according to Section 03.31.04, the Planning Commission shall review 

the request, supplementary materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the 

Planning Department’s report, at a Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either 

grant or deny the request, table action on the request, or grant the request subject to specific 

conditions. Section 03.31.05 states that before approving any requests for special use approval, 

the Planning Commission, or the City Council, where indicated, shall find that: 

 

1. The land use or activity being proposed shall be of such location, size and character as to 

be compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts. 

2. The land use or activity under consideration is within the capacity limitations of the 

existing or proposed public services and facilities which serve its location.  

 

We believe the land use as proposed is of such location and character as to be compatible with 

the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts. 

 

We also concur with the reviews of all other City departments and have no significant objections 

with regard to the proposed use, provided the applicant does not display automobiles for sale in 

the front yard.  Therefore, we recommend the Planning Commission approve the proposed 

special land use, conditioned on the applicant submitting a revised application form omitting the 

“auction” language, and a revised site plan clearly demonstrating that autos for sale will be locate 

only in the rear or side yards and will not occupy any requires parking spaces. 

 

 

 





  PC 2010.06.08 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

DATE: June 3, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 961) – Proposed 

Panera Bread Drive-Thru, West side of Coolidge, South of Maple (1325 
Coolidge Hwy.), Section 31, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) – 
Controlled by Consent Judgment 

 
 
The applicant ArcVision, Inc. submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application.  They propose a drive-thru window for the Panera Bread on the north 
side of the building.  The property is zoned M-1 but is part of the Midtown Square 
development and controlled by Consent Judgment.  Therefore, the Planning Commission 
has a recommending role for this application.  City Council must approve the amended 
Consent Judgment and site plan. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
project. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the June 8, 2010 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared by CWA. 
3. Drive-Thru Sound Pressure Levels From the Menu Board or Speaker Post. 
4. Public Comment. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 961 
 

 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 961 Panera Bread Cafe  Sec 31\SP-961 Panera Bread Improvement 06 08 10.docx 
 



PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 961) – Proposed Panera 

Bread Café, West side of Coolidge, South of Maple (1325 Coolidge), Section 31, 
Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
Proposed Resolution # PC-2010-06- 

Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested 
for the proposed Panera Bread Café drive-thru, located on the west side of 
Coolidge, south of Maple, in Section 31, within the M-1 zoning district, be 
(granted, subject to the following conditions): 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / DENIED 



PANERA BREAD, 1325 COOLIDGE

5/12/2010

Legend

1: 936

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

780156 156Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



PANERA BREAD, 1325 COOLIDGE

5/12/2010

Legend

1: 936

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

780156 156Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 

Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Brent Savidant 

 

FROM: Zachary Branigan 

DATE: June 1, 2010 

 

RE: Panera Bread Drive-Through Window, Consent Judgment Amendment 

 

 

We are in receipt of an application to add a drive-through window to an existing Panera Bread 

restaurant at the west end of an existing multi-tenant retail building within the Midtown Square 

development. This window would be located on the north side of the existing building in what is 

now a service drive for the tenants of the building.  The drive would be located between the 

building and the adjacent multi-family residential component of Midtown Square. 

 

Given that the proposed project is within the boundaries of Midtown Square, a project approved 

via consent judgment, the Planning Commission is not reviewing this project for preliminary and 

final site plan approval but is rather considering the project in order to make a recommendation 

to City Council, who has the authority to amend the consent judgment.  The approved site plan 

for Midtown Square is part of the consent judgment, and this project would essentially amend 

that approved site plan. 

 

This proposal has been reviewed by the various agencies within the City with few comments 

received.  The area the drive through is being proposed is currently impervious, is used for 

deliveries, and would not significantly impact on-site circulation or increase traffic entering or 

existing Midtown Square by a meaningful amount, according to the City Engineering 

Department. 

 

The proposed improvements include: 

 

1. New equipment for the drive-through window (call box, pressure sensor for automobiles, 

menu canopy and signs) 

2. One-way traffic signage for the entire driveway, prohibiting eastbound traffic north of the 

building 

3. New striping, bollards, and directional arrows to direct traffic 

4. New concrete trash pad 

5. New median island 

6. New small building addition to accommodate the drive-through window 



Panera Bread Drive-Through Addition 

June 2, 2010 

 2 

The addition of a drive-through window is permitted by action of City Council, given the nature 

of this development as a project approved via consent judgment.  Conventionally, restaurants and 

drive-through lanes are not expressly permitted in the underlying M-1 District. However, this 

project no longer resembles an M-1 District and essentially functions as a multiple-use retail and 

residential project.  The proposed drive-through window would be clearly accessory to an 

established primary use on the site and would not alter the character or function of the overall 

development. 

 

However, given its proximity to the residential portion of Midtown Square, we feel some 

additional care must be taken to provide a buffer between the proposed drive-through and the 

residential units nearby.  The residential buildings are perpendicular to the proposed drive-

through lane, reducing the conflict.  However, we feel that a landscape treatment of obscuring 

vegetation in the area would reduce the conflict of the added cars and expanded hours when 

vehicles would now be using the lane.  

 

The applicant has provided a review of the anticipated speaker sound pressure levels from the 

new equipment, and has demonstrated that the proposed sound level should be similar to ambient 

levels at the transitional area between the drive-through lane and the adjacent residential.  While 

not significantly louder, however, the new noise could prove to be a nuisance in that it is an 

intermittent and irregular source of noise.  The suggested landscape screen would further 

mitigate the potential noise from the added speaker boxes for the drive-through ordering system.   

 

No additional parking will be required by this addition, aside from the provided stacking, which 

meets minimum Ordinance requirements for drive-through stacking. 

 

We concur with the reviews of all other City departments and have no significant objections with 

regard to the proposed addition.  The project would not increase impervious surface, would not 

significantly increase traffic, and with the addition of the landscaping buffer, would not 

significantly alter or impact the adjacent multiple family residential structures.  Therefore, we 

recommend the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council that the consent judgment 

be amended to permit the request drive-through lane, subject to the provision of a landscape 

buffer along the north boundary of the retail portion of the site, to mitigate any potential negative 

impacts caused by the additional traffic through this lane. 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 

Memo 
 
Re:  Drive-Thru Sound Pressure Levels From the Menu Board or Speaker Post 
 
The sound pressure levels from the menu board or speaker post are as follows: 
 

1.  Sound pressure level (SPL) contours (A weighted) were measured on a typical HME SPP2 
speaker post.  The test condition was for pink noise set to 84 dBA at 1 foot in front of the 
speaker.  All measurements were conducted outside with the speaker post placed 8 feet from a 
non-absorbing building wall and at an oblique angle to the wall.  These measurements should 
not be construed to guarantee performance with any particular speaker post in any particular 
environment.  They are typical results obtained under the conditions described above. 

 
2.  The SPL levels are presented for different distances from the speaker post: 

 
Distance from the Speaker (Feet) SPL (dBA) 

1 foot 84 dBA 
2 feet 78 dBA 
4 feet 72 dBA 
8 feet 66 dBA 

16 feet 60 dBA 
32 feet 54 dBA 

 
3.  The above levels are based on factory recommended operating levels, which are preset for 

HME components and represent the optimum level for drive-thru operations in the majority of 
the installations. 

 
Also, HME incorporates automatic volume control (AVC) into many of our Systems.  AVC will adjust the 
outbound volume based on the outdoor, ambient noise level.  When ambient noise levels naturally decrease 
at night, AVC will reduce the outbound volume on the system.  See below for example: 
 

Distance from Outside Speaker 
Decibel Level of standard 

system with 45 dB of outside 
noise without AVC 

Decibel level of standard system 
with 45 dB of outside noise with 

AVC active 
1 foot 84 dBA 60 dBA 
2 feet 78 dBA 54 dBA 
4 feet 72 dBA 48 dBA 
8 feet 66 dBA 42 dBA 

16 feet 60 dBA 36 dBA 
 
If there are any further questions regarding this issue please contact HME customer service at 1-800-848-4468. 
 
Thank you for your interest in HME’s products. 



From: Brent Savidant
To: Kathy Czarnecki
Subject: FW: Panera drive thru window
Date: Friday, June 04, 2010 10:10:15 AM

 
 

From: thomasbartlett [mailto:thomasbartlett@comcast.net] 
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 10:09 AM
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: Re: Panera drive thru window
 
Mr.  Savidant:
 
    Thank you for your timely response to my email.  The following items are some of my concerns with Panera
adding a drive thru window.
 
1.  The loud spreaker will start at 6:00am and run until closing.
 
2.  We will not be able to open our windows due to the drive thru orders from the loud speakers.
 
3.  Additional traffic and exhaust fumes from idiling vehicles.
 
4.  Our pederstrain crossing  to Panera is directly in front of the proposed drive thru window.
 
5.  Delivery trucks will be parked outside our condo waiting to get access to the delivery doors located where the
drive thru traffic will be lining up to place orders.
 
6.  We will have no privacy on our deck which faces the proposed drive thru window.
 
I would like to voice my concerns to the Planning Board on Jun 8th.
 
Thank you 
 
Tom Bartlett
 

----- Original Message -----

From: Brent Savidant

To: thomasbartlett

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 2:36 PM

Subject: RE: Panera drive thru window

 
Mr. Bartlett:
 
You can put your concerns in writing and email to me so that I can forward to the Planning
Commission.  Or you can attend the meeting and voice your opinion.  Or you can do both.
 
If you send me written comments today I will put the comments in the Planning Commission
packets.
 
Brent Savidant

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SAVIDANTB
mailto:CzarneckiK@troymi.gov
mailto:SavidantB@troymi.gov
mailto:thomasbartlett@comcast.net


 

From: thomasbartlett [mailto:thomasbartlett@comcast.net] 
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 2:30 PM
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: Panera drive thru window
 
Mr.  Savidant,
   
 I live at 1381 Raliegh Place, Troy MI.   My condo unit is located adjacent to Panera Bread Cafe.   My building
is approx. 180ft from the proposed drive thru window site.   I'm concerned on how this will impact our quality of
life and would like the opportunity to voice my concerns at the June 8th meeting.
 
Thank you for your consideration.
 
Thomas Bartlett
248-458-6061





STRUCTURE TYPE RIM SIZE/PIPE DIRECTION INVERT COMMENTS

A SANITARY MH 736.54 FLOWING EAST

8" E. 726.44

8" SW 726.54

B SANITARY MH 737.42 FLOWING EAST

8" W. 725.57

8" E. 725.47

C SANITARY MH 737.55 FLOWING EAST

8" W. 725.25

8" E. 725.19

8" N. 725.20

D SANITARY MH 736.76 FLOWING SOUTH

8" S. & W. 723.96

E SANITARY MH 733.20 FLOWING EAST

8" E. & W. 715.85

F SANITARY MH 737.33 8" STRUCTURE NOT INVENTORIED

G CATCHBASIN 736.39

24" SE 732.04

H STORM MH 737.00

24" NW 731.33

12" S. 731.33

I CATCHBASIN 734.93 FLOWING SOUTH

12" S. 730.60

12" N. N/A

J CATCHBASIN 733.13

12" N. & SSW 727.93

K CATCHBASIN 731.08 FULL OF DEBRIS

12" NW 726.88

L CATCHBASIN 733.56

12" E. 729.29

M STORM MH 733.20

12" NNE 727.90

12" SE 726.60

24" SW 726.65

12" W. 728.1 +/-

N SANITARY MH 733.87 UNDER BUSH - CANNOT OPEN

O CATCHBASIN 734.43

24" NE 734.43

P CATCHBASIN 736.13

Q CATCHBASIN 735.51

12" S. & N. 730.61

R CATCHBASIN 735.64

12" NE 731.84

12" S. 731.14

S CATCHBASIN 730.86 12" N. STRUCTURE NOT INVENTORIED

PANERA BREAD (TROY) STRUCTURE LIST

JOB NO.: 10500018

N'LY INVERT OBSTRUCTED BY 

OFFSET STRUCTURE

W'LY INVERT PARTIALLY 

OBSTRUCTED BY OFFSET 

STRUCTURE

FULL OF WATER, NO PIPES 

VISIBLE



4.2

2.2

1.1

2.6

2.5

2.3

1.8

1.6

2.71.92.7 1.4

2.0

4.1

4.1

2.0 2.0

1.3

1.8 1.81.8

1.81.6

1.7

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
-

FILE: 707-A-5.1.dwg

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

KEYED NOTES:
1.1

4.1

GENERAL NOTES:

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.8

4.2

1.5

SHEET NO:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

BAKERY CAFE:

#707
SYSTEM:  G2 (FUN)

PROTOTYPE UPDATE:  2009-02

OPS PLAN

R

ISSUED  5.5.10

PA
N

ER
A 

BA
KE

R
Y

C
AF

E 
# 

70
7

13
25

 N
O

R
TH

 C
O

O
LI

D
G

E 
H

W
Y

TR
O

Y
, M

I 4
80

84

ISSUE DATE:  5.5.10
PROEJCT NUMBER: 100360
DRAWN BY: ABS
DM: DM
DPM: MS
CPM: MK

M
/E

/P
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
:

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T:

1.9

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7NORTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"



  PC 2010.06.08 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 

DATE: June 1, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 960) – Proposed 

Vehma International Improvements, Northwest corner of Stephenson and 
Rankin (1055 Stephenson), Section 35, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light 
Industrial) 

 
 
The applicant, Kemp & Peyerk-Sterling, LLC, submitted the above referenced Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval application.  The applicant is proposing to construct a two story, 
142,000 square foot industrial building. 
 
A cursory review of the application indicated the need for a variance from the 50-foot front 
yard setback requirement in the M-1 district.  The applicant submitted an application for the 
Board of Zoning Appeals and is on the June 15, 2010 BZA agenda.  Therefore, no action 
is necessary prior to the BZA meeting. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
required variance.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the June 8, 2010 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by CWA 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 960 
 

 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 960 Vehma International  Sec 35\SP-960 Vehma International 06 08 10.docx 



 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 960) – Proposed VEHMA 

International Improvements, Northwest Corner of Stephenson Hwy and Rankin 
(1055 Stephenson Hwy), Section 35, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 

 
 No action required. 
 



VEHMA INTERNATIONAL

5/4/2010

Legend

1: 1,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1560312 312Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



VEHMA INTERNATIONAL

5/4/2010

Legend

1: 2,808

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2340468 468Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 

Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Brent Savidant 

 

FROM: Zachary Branigan 

DATE: May 24, 2010 

 

RE: Vehma International 

 

 

We are in receipt of a site plan for the proposed Vehma International Building at 1055 

Stephenson Highway.  We have reviewed this submittal preliminarily for general compliance 

with ordinance requirements and have determined that the project complies with the required 

height limitations, building setbacks, minimum landscaped area, maximum lot coverage, and 

general parking requirements.  However, the applicant will be required to secure one variance to 

proceed with the plan as designed. 

 

Section 43.86.00, which was enacted in October of 2009, states that when a variance is required 

for a project which also requires site plan approval, that project must first come before the 

Planning Commission.  It states: 

 

If an application to the Board of Zoning Appeals requires site plan approval by the Planning 

Commission pursuant to the provisions of Section 03.40.03, the applicant shall first apply for site 

plan approval as set forth in Article 03.41.00. The Planning Commission shall review the site 

plan including site layout and other design features, but shall not grant Preliminary Site Plan 

Approval nor make a recommendation on the variance. The Planning Commission shall then 

transmit the site plan and the minutes related to said site plan to the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

The Board of Zoning Appeals shall transmit its decision related to the application to the 

Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall then take action on the site plan. 

 

Consequently, the Planning Commission cannot make a determination on this project at this 

time.  The Planning Commission may make preliminary comments and have an initial discussion 

with regard to general project principles. 

 

We have determined that the project does not comply with minimum ordinance requirements, 

and would need relief from the Board of Zoning Appeals to proceed, in the following area: 

 

1. This site has three front lot lines, creating three front yard setback requirements along 

Allen Drive, Rankin Street, and Stephenson Highway.  The front yard setback 

requirement for the M-1 District is 50 feet.  Parking cannot be located within the front 



Vehma International 

May 24, 2010 

 2 

yard setback.  The parking on Allen Drive and Rankin Street encroach into the front yard 

setback. 

 

This project cannot move forward as designed without relief from the Ordinance.  Therefore, we 

recommend that the Planning Commission postpone action on the applicant’s request until such 

time as they can apply for and potentially obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

 

Sincerely,  

 
 

225-02-2910 






















	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	May 25, 2010 Special/Study Meeting Minutes

	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL REQUEST (File Number SU 380)
	SU 380 - UNIQUE AUTO SALES
	PROPOSED RESOLUTION
	MAPS
	CWA REPORT
	SITE PLAN

	 PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 961)
	SP 961 - PANERA BREAD DRIVE-THRU
	PROPOSED RESOLUTION
	MAPS
	CWA REPORT
	DRIVE-THRU SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	SITE PLAN

	PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 960)
	SP 960 - VEHMA INTERNATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS
	MAPS
	CWA REPORT
	SITE PLAN

	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS

